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Foreword

 Velindre NHS Trust

These accounts for the period ended 31 March 2012 have been prepared to comply with International 
Financial Reporting Standards  (IFRS) in accordance with HM Treasury's I-FReM by the Velindre NHS 
Trust under schedule 9 section 178 Para 3 (1) of the National Health Service (Wales) Act 2006 (c.42) 
in the form in which the Welsh Ministers, with the approval of the Treasury, directed. 
 
The Trust was established by Statutory Instrument on the 1st April 1994 and at that time was a single 
specialty Trust providing only Cancer Services with a turnover of £9m. Over the last eighteen years 
the Trust has significantly evolved and now has a turnover of £83m from directly managed services 
with the remainder of turnover being generated by hosted bodies. 
 
The main function of the Trust is to provide All Wales and Regional clinical, health and social care 
services to the NHS and people of Wales and these services provided by the Trust during 2011/12 
included: 
Regional non-surgical Cancer Services, mainly to the people of South East Wales, provided from 
Velindre Hospital and outreach clinics and Welsh Blood Service (WBS), including Welsh 
Transplantation and Immunogenetics Laboratory (WTAIL). 
 
Over the years Velindre NHS Trust has in addition taken on board a number of hosted organisations.  
At the end of 2011/12 these included: 
 
• NHS Wales Informatic Services (NWIS) 
• National Institute for Social Care and Health Research Clinical Research Centre (NISCHR CRC -
formally Wales Cancer Trials Network) 
• Cancer Research Care Cymru (CRCC) 
• National Collaborating Centre for Cancer (NCC-C) 
• Cancer Services Co-ordinating Group 
• Cardiac Services Co-ordination Group 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2012

2011-12 2010-11

Note £000 £000

Revenue from patient care activities 2 75,744 76,091

Other operating revenue 3 58,623 66,568

Operating expenses 5 (134,360) (142,683)

Operating surplus/(deficit) 7 (24)

Investment revenue 6 58 33

Other gains and losses 7 (20) 0

Finance costs 8 (2) (2)

Retained surplus/(deficit) 32.1 43 7

Other Comprehensive Income

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,572 0

Net gain on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0

Net gain/loss on Other Reserve 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Total other comprehensive income for the year 1,572 0
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Note 31 March 31 March 

2012 2011

(Restated)

£000 £000

Non-current assets Property, plant and equipment 13 78,029 77,504

Intangible assets 14 14,250 9,204

Trade and other receivables 19 0 0

Other financial assets 20 0 0

Other assets 21 0 0

Total non-current assets 92,279 86,708

Current assets Inventories 18 1,584 1,908

Trade and other receivables 19 12,810 19,146

Other financial assets 20 0 0

Other assets 21 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 22 22,231 7,347

36,625 28,401

Non-current assets held for sale 13 0 0

Total current assets 36,625 28,401

Total assets 128,904 115,109

Current liabilities Trade and other payables 23 (30,739) (24,494)

Borrowings 24 (2,085) (12)

Other financial liabilities 25 0 0

Provisions 27 (92) (311)

Other liabilities 26 (2) (2)

Total current liabilities (32,918) (24,819)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 3,707 3,582

Total assets less current liabilities 95,986 90,290

Non-current liabilities Trade and other payables 23 0 0

Borrowings 24 (171) (980)

Other financial liabilities 25 0 0

Provisions 27 (286) (293)

Other liabilities 26 0 (2)

Total non-current liabilities (457) (1,275)

Total assets employed 95,529 89,015

Financed by Taxpayers' equity:

Public dividend capital 57,908 53,009

Retained earnings 11,560 11,517

Revaluation reserve 26,061 24,489

Other reserves 0 0

Total taxpayers' equity 95,529 89,015

Mr Simon Dean, Chief Executive Officer Date:     31 May 2012

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT  31 March 2012

The financial statements were approved by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board on 31 
May 2012 and signed on behalf of the Board by: 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

2011-12

Public 

Dividend 

Capital

Retained 

earnings

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 restated 53,009 11,517 24,489 0 89,015

Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2011-

12

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 43 43

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment 0 1,572 0 1,572Net gain on revaluation of intangible 

assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of financial assets

Net gain on revaluation of assets held for 

sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Net gain/loss on Other Reserve (specify) 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of 

available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0

New Public Dividend Capital received 6,634 6,634

Public Dividend Capital repaid in year 0 0

Public Dividend Capital 

extinguished/written off 0 0

Other movements in PDC in year (1,735) (1,735)

Balance at 31 March 2012 57,908 11,560 26,061 0 95,529

The notes on pages 6 to 60 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

2010-11

Public 

Dividend 

Capital

Retained 

earnings

Revaluation 

reserve

Donated 

asset 

reserve

Govern-

ment Grant 

Reserve

Other 

reserves Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2010

As previously stated in 2009-10 accounts 45,313 1,828 26,868 6,293 0 0 80,302
Prior period adjustment for removal of 

donated and government granted asset 

reserves 0 6,198 95 (6,293) 0 0 0

Other prior period adjustment 0 1,010 0 0 0 0 1,010

Restated balance 45,313 9,036 26,963 0 0 0 81,312

Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2010-

11

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 7 7

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment 0 0 0 0Net gain on revaluation of intangible 

assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain on revaluation of assets held for 

sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 2,474 (2,474) 0 0

Net gain/loss on Other Reserve (specify) 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of 

available for sale financial assets 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0

New Public Dividend Capital received 5,000 5,000

Public Dividend Capital repaid in year 0 0

Public Dividend Capital 

extinguished/written off 0 0

Other movements in PDC in year 2,696 2,696

Restated balance at 31 March 2011 53,009 11,517 24,489 0 89,015

The notes on pages 6 to 60 form part of these accounts.
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2011-12 2010-11

Note £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus/(deficit) SOCI 7 (24)

Depreciation and amortisation 5 8,654 8,650

Impairments and reversals 5 444 0

Release of PFI deferred credits 0 0

Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 3 0 (159)

Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 3 0 0

Interest paid 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 324 12

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 4,601 3,964

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 4,689 3,399

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (2) 0

Increase/(decrease) in provisions (226) 94

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 18,491 15,936

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 55 31

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment (5,700) (14,653)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0 0

(Payments) for intangible assets (5,670) 0

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 0 0

(Payments) for investments with Welsh Government 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of investments with Welsh Government 0 0

(Payments) for financial assets. 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets. 0 0

Rental proceeds 0 0

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (11,315) (14,622)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 7,176 1,314

Cash flows from financing activities

Public Dividend Capital received 6,634 5,000

Public Dividend Capital repaid 0 0

Loans received from Welsh Government 0 0

Other loans received 0 0

Loans repaid to Welsh Government 0 0

Other loans repaid 0 0

Other capital receipts 0 0

Capital elements of finance leases and on-SOFP PFI 0 0

Cash transferred (to)/from other NHS Wales bodies 0 0

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 6,634 5,000

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,810 6,314

Cash [and] cash equivalents [and bank overdrafts] 22 6,397 83

       at the beginning of the financial year

Cash [and] cash equivalents [and bank overdrafts] 

       at the end of the financial year 22 20,207 6,397

The notes on pages 6 to 60 form part of these accounts.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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Notes to the Accounts

Accounting policies  
1.  The Welsh Minister for Health and Social Services has directed that the financial statements of NHS 
Trusts in Wales shall meet the accounting requirements of the NHS Trust Manual for Accounts. 
Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2011/12 
NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts.  The accounting policies contained in that manual follow the European 
Union version of the International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful 
and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting 
Advisory Board.  Where the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the 
accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the trust for 
the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by the trust 
are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in 
relation to the accounts.   
 
1.1  Accounting convention   
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and  inventories. 
 
1.2  Acquisitions and discontinued operations 
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector.  Activities 
are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely.  They are not considered to be 
‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another. 
 
1.3  Pooled budgets  
 
The trust has not entered into any pooled budget arrangements with Local Authorities.   
 
1.4 Revenue   
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, 
and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of revenue for the trust 
is from the Welsh Government and the Health Boards.  This revenue is recognised in the period in which 
services are provided.   
 
Where income is received from Non NHS bodies for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the 
following year, that income is deferred. 
 
The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of 
treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an 
insurer.  The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and 
Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income 
is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for  
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#REF!unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.  Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and interest rate applicable.  
 
1.5  Employee Benefits 
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is 
received from employees. The cost of  leave earned but not yet taken by employees at the end of the 
period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry 
forward leave into the following period.  
 
Retirement benefit costs 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The 
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and 
other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme 
is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the 
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined 
contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the 
contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  
 
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded 
by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the 
time the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 
 
 
1.6  Other expenses 
Other operating expenses for goods or services are recognised when, and to the extent that, they have 
been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable. 
 
1.7 Property, plant and equipment 
Recognition 
 Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 
  it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 
  it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the 
trust; 
  it is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 
  the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and 
  the item has cost of at least £5,000; or 
  Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more 
than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase 
dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or 
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  Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective 
of their individual or collective cost. 
 
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different 
asset lives, the components are depreciated over their own useful economic lives. 
 
Valuation  
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable 
to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.   
 
Land and buildings used for the trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the balance 
sheet at their revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially 
different from those that would be determined at the balance sheet date.  Fair values are determined as 
follows:  
 
 - Land and non specialised buildings – market value for existing use  
 - Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost  
 
From 1 April 2009 the depreciated replacement cost valuation applies the Modern Equivalent Asset 
(MEA) cost basis of estimation to arrive at the cost of replacing the capacity and utility of a building 
rather than a like for like replacement cost..  
 
Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less 
any impairment loss.  Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as 
expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value.  Assets are revalued and 
depreciation commences when they are brought into use.  
 
For 2011-12indexation has been applied to the Land and Properties of NHS Wales Trusts based on 
indices for NHS Wales Land and Buildings obtained from the District Valuation Office.    Bodies must 
consider annually whether indexation using an appropriate basis is required.  The carrying value of 
existing assets at that date will be written off over their remaining useful lives and new fixtures and 
equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from 
fair value.    
  
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an 
impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to 
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not 
result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the 
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 
expenditure. Impairment  losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken 
to expenditure. This is a change in accounting policy from previous years where all impairments were 
taken to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a balance was held for that asset and thereafter to 
expenditure.   However, to ensure that the outcome as reflected in the reserves figure on the Statement 
of Financial Position is consistent with the requirements of IAS 36 had this adaptation not been applied, 
the balance on any revaluation reserve (up to the level of the impairment) to which the impairment would 
have been charged under IAS 36 should be transferred to Retained earnings. 
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Subsequent expenditure 
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly 
attributable cost is capitalised.  Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original 
specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is 
written-out and charged to operating expenses. 
 
1.8 Intangible assets 
Recognition 
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale 
separately from the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  
They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service 
potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where 

the cost is at least £5,000.   
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to 
the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item 
of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for 
example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on research is not 
capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-
generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated: 

 
  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use 

  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it 
  the ability to sell or use the intangible asset 
  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential 
  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset 
and sell or use it 
  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 
development 
 
Measurement 
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the 
expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it 
is incurred. 
 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active 
market, or, where no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets 
basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.  Internally-developed software is 
held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and 
technological advances. 
 
1.9  Research and development   
Research and development expenditure is charged to operating costs in the year in which it is 
incurred, except insofar as it relates to a clearly defined project, which can be separated from patient 
care activity and benefits there from can reasonably be regards as assured.  Expenditure so deferred 
is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the SOCI on a systematic 
basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. 
 
1.10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 
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Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated 
useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the 
assets.  The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the Trust expects to obtain 
economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the Trust and may be shorter 
than the physical life of the asset itself.  Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each 
year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance 
leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives  
 
At each reporting period end, the trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or 
intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment 
loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, 
if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. 
 
Impairment losses that do not result from a loss of economic value or service potential are taken to the 
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear 
consumption of economic benefit are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. The 
balance on any revaluation reserve (up to the level of the impairment) to which the impairment would 
have been charged under IAS 36 are transferred to retained earnings. 
 
1.11 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred.  
 
1.12 Donated assets 
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a donated asset 
reserve is no longer maintained.  Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on 
receipt, with a matching credit to Income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described 
above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are as described 
above for purchased assets.  Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the 
donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain. 
 
This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the 2010-11 results 
have been restated. 
 
1.13 Government grants  
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a government 
grant reserve is no longer maintained.  The value of assets received by means of a government grant 
are credited directly to income.  Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the 
grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain. 
 
This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the 2010-11 results 
have been restated. 
 
1.14 Non-current assets held for sale 
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when 
the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and 
management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale 
within one year from the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the 
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value 
including alternative uses. 
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The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the 
carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  On disposal, the 
balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. For donated and 
government-granted assets, a transfer is made to or from the relevant reserve to the profit/loss on 
disposal account so that no profit or loss is recognised in income or expenses. The remaining surplus 
or deficit in the donated asset or government grant reserve is then transferred to retained earnings.  
 
Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as 
held for sale.  Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The 
asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished. 
 
1.15 Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.  
 
The trust as lessee  
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of 
the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a 
matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments are apportioned between 
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s 
surplus/deficit. 
 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and 
individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases.   
 
The trust as lessor  
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the 
trust’s net investment in the leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to 
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the 
leases.  
 
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
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1.17 Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the weighted average 
cost formula.  This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high 
turnover of stocks.  
 
1.18 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice 
of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from 
the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant 
risk of change in value.   
 
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the trust’s cash management. 
 
1.19 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that the trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  The amount recognised as a provision is 
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting 
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the 
cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms. 
 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the amount receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision.  
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the trust has a contract under which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received under it. 
 
A restructuring provision is recognised when the trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the 
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the 
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by 
it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arsing from 
the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring 
and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity. 
 
1.20 Clinical Negligence Costs  
The Welsh Risk Pool operates a risk pooling scheme which is currently funded by the Welsh 
Government. The WRP is hosted by Betsi Cadwaladr University LHB. 
 
1.21 EU Emissions Trading Scheme 
EU Emission Trading Scheme allowances are accounted for as government grant funded 
intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised within twelve months, and otherwise as 
other current assets.  They are valued at open market value. As the NHS body makes emissions, a 
provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from the government grant reserve.  The 
provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The asset, provision and government grant 
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1.22 Contingencies 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that 
a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 
 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.   
 
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value. 
 
1.23  Financial assets  
Financial assets are recognised when the trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in 
the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered.  Financial assets are 
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred. 
 
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.    
 
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit 
and loss’; ‘held to maturity investments’; ‘available for sale’ financial assets, and ‘loans and receivables’.  
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the 
time of initial recognition.  
 
Financial assets at fair value through SOCI  
 
The Trust has no embedded derivatives. 
 
Held to maturity investments  
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  After initial recognition, they 
are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is 
recognised using the effective interest method. 
 
Available for sale financial assets  
 The Trust does not have any available for sale financial assets. 
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Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
which are not quoted in an active market.  After initial recognition, they are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised 
using the effective interest method. 
 
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by 
valuation techniques 
 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset. 
 
At the end of the reporting period, the trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than 
those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired.  Financial assets are impaired and 
impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the asset. 
 
The loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
directly/through a provision for impairment of receivables  
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that the carrying 
amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the 
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 
 
1.24  Financial liabilities   
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the trust becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, 
when the goods or services have been received.  Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the 
liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired. 
 
Loans from the Welsh Government are recognised at historical cost.  Otherwise, financial 
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. 
 
Financial guarantee contract liabilities 
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of: 
  -  the premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less cumulative 
amortisation; 
  -  the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through SOCI 
 
The Trust does not have any financial guarantee contract liabilities nor any financial derivatives 
requiring to be stated at fair value through profit and loss 
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. 
 
Other financial liabilities 
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, except for loans from the Welsh Government, which are carried at historic 
cost.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.  Interest is 
recognised using the effective interest method. 
 
1.25 Value Added Tax 
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not 
apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant 
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where output tax 
is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 
 
1.26 Foreign currencies  
The trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling.  Transactions denominated in 
a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the 
transactions.  At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March.  Resulting exchange gains and losses for 
either of these are recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise. 
 
1.27 Third party assets 
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in 
the accounts since the trust has no beneficial interest in them.  
 
1.28 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend 
Public Dividend Capital represents taxpayers equity in the NHS Trust.  At any time the Welsh 
Minister for Health and Social Services with the approval of HM Treasury can issue new PDC to, 
and require repayments of, PDC from the NHS Trust.  PDC is recorded at the value received.  As 
PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity financial 
instrument.  
 
From 1 April 2010 the requirement to pay a public dividend over to the Welsh Government ceased.  
In 2009-10 a charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS Trust, was paid over as public 
dividend capital dividend.  The charge was calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (3.5%) on 
the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities, except for donated assets and cash with 
the Government Banking Service and the National Loans Fund.  The average carrying amount of 
assets was calculated as a simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.   
 
1.29 Losses and Special Payments 
Losses and special payments are items that the Welsh Government would not have contemplated 
when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that 
ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 
generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which govern the way each 
individual case is handled.  
 
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in the income 
statement on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through 
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The Trust accounts for all losses and special payments gross (including assistance from the Welsh Risk 
Pool). The Trust accrues or provides for the best estimate of its future payouts for certain or probable 
liabilities and discloses all other potential payments as contingent liabilities, unless the probability of the 
liabilities becoming payable is remote. 
 
All claims for losses and special payments are provided for, where the probability of settlement of an 
individual claim is over 50%. Where reliable estimates can be made, incidents of clinical negligence 
against which a claim has not, as yet, been received are provided in the same way. Expected 
reimbursements from the Welsh Risk Pool are included in debtors. For those claims where the probability 
of settlement is below 50%, the liability is disclosed as a contingent liability. 
 
1.30 Critical Accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In the application of the trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from those 
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period, or the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. 
 
1.31 Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies 
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that 
management has made in the process of applying the trust's accounting policies and that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
1.32  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 
 
subject to final  review 

(i)  Provisions for clinical and personal injury claims have been estimated based on the values advised by 
the Welsh risk Pool as in previous years (£290K) 
 
(ii)  Voluntary early release scheme payments which have not yet been paid have been estimated based 
on the calculations provided to the relevant remuneration committee and will be subject to final review 
(£230K). 
 
(iii)  The final value of the construction of bunkers 7 & 8 has been estimated by the Trust’s professional 
advisors following a review of claims made by the contractor (£3,741K) 
 
 
 
1.33 Subsidiaries 
Material entities over which the trust has the power to exercise control so as to obtain economic or other 
benefits are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. Their income and expenses; gains and 
losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows are consolidated in full into the appropriate 
financial statement lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s 
accounting policies are not aligned with the trust’s or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is before 1 
January or after 30 June. 
  
 Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or 
‘fair value less costs to sell’ 
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1.34 Associates 
Material entities over which the trust has the power to exercise significant influence so as to obtain 
economic or other benefits are classified as associates and are recognised in the trust’s accounts using 
the equity method. The investment is recognised initially at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect 
the trust’s share of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/losses. It is also reduced when any distribution 
is received by the trust from the entity. 
  
Associates that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair 
value less costs to sell’ 
  
1.35 Joint ventures 
Material entities over which the trust has joint control with one or more other parties so as to obtain 
economic or other benefits are classified as joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for by [delete: 
proportional consolidation, equity method]. 
  
Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or 
‘fair value less costs to sell’ 
  
1.36 Joint operations 
Joint operations are activities undertaken by the trust in conjunction with one or more other parties but 
which are not performed through a separate entity. The trust records its share of the income and 
expenditure; gains and losses; assets and liabilities; and cash flows. 
  
1.37 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 
The are no accounting standards issued by the IASB and IFRIC which have not been adopted because 
they are not yet required to be adopted. 
 
  
1.38 Accounting standards issued that have been adopted early 
There are no accounting standards issued which have been adopted early. 
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2.  Revenue from patient care activities 2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

Welsh Government 26 6

Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee (WHSSC) 29,496 29,624

Local health boards 44,220 43,200

Welsh NHS Trusts 32 1,606

Other NHS trusts 503 0

Strategic health authorities and primary care trusts 0 0

Foundation Trusts 0 0

Welsh Local Authorities 0 0

Local authorities 0 0

Non NHS:

      Private patient income 1,046 1,144

      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 0 0

      Injury Costs Recovery (ICR) Scheme 0 0

      Other revenue from activities 421 511

Total 75,744 76,091

ICR income is subject to a provision for impairment of 10.5% to reflect expected rates of collection.

3.  Other operating revenue 2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

Patient transport services 0 0

Education, training and research 2,837 3,408

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 1,953 1,934

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions 0 0

Receipt of government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0

Non-patient care services to other bodies 0 0

Income generation 869 631

Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0

Rental revenue from operating leases 0 0

Other revenue:

Provision of laundry, pathology, payroll services 0 3

Accommodation and catering charges 142 148

Mortuary fees 0 0

Staff payments for use of cars 52 59

Business unit 0 0

Other 52,770 60,385

Total 58,623 66,568

Other revenue of £52846k (2010-11 £60385k) comprises 

1 NWIS 43,488  52,028

2 Other 9,282 8,357

3

4

5

6

7

8

Total 52,770 60,385
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4.    Income generation activities

Velindre has no income generation Activity who's costs exceed £1 million 
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5.  Operating expenses 2011-12 2010-11

5.1 Operating expenses £000 £000

Welsh Government 0 0

WHSSC 0 0

Local Health Boards 2,991 1,540

Welsh NHS Trusts 633 642

Other NHS Trusts 0 24

Goods and services from other NHS bodies 16 0

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 0 0

Welsh Local Authorities 0 0

Other Local Authorities 0 0

Directors' costs 745 531

Staff costs 67,853 71,450

Supplies and services - clinical 30,050 28,881

Supplies and services - general 873 1,183

Consultancy Services 4,229 699

Establishment 4,795 14,730

Transport 294 204

Premises 10,007 8,945

Provision for impairment of receivables 40 (12)

Depreciation 5,521 4,422

Amortisation 3,133 4,228

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 444 0

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 0 0

Impairments and reversals of financial assets 0 0

Impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale 0 0

Audit fees 211 255

Other auditors' remuneration 0 0

Losses, special payments and irrecoverable debts (13) 291

Research and development 0 0

Other operating expenses 2,538 4,670

Total 134,360 142,683
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5.  Operating expenses (continued)

5.2  Losses, special payments and irrecoverable debts:

charges to operating expenses 2011-12 2010-11

Increase/(decrease) in provision for future payments: £000 £000

Clinical negligence (184) 212

Personal injury 40 73

All other losses and special payments 0 172

Defence legal fees and other administrative costs 2 4

Gross increase/(decrease) in provision for future payments (142) 461

Contribution to Welsh Risk Pool 0 0

Premium for other insurance arrangements 0 0

Irrecoverable debts 0 0

Less: income received/ due from Welsh Risk Pool 129 (170)

Total charge (13) 291

The Clinical Negligence includes £nil in respect of payments made under Redress. 
Personal injury includes £nil(2010-11 £nil in respect of permanent injury benefits. 
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6.  Investment revenue 2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

Rental revenue :

PFI finance lease revenue:

Planned 0 0

Contingent 0 0

Other finance lease revenue 0 0

Interest revenue:

Bank accounts 58 33

Other loans and receivables 0 0

Impaired financial assets 0 0

Other financial assets 0 0

Total 58 33

7.  Other gains and losses 2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (20) 0

Gain/(loss) on disposal of intangible assets 0 0

Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets 0 0

Gains/(loss) on foreign exchange 0 0

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through income statement 0 0

Change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through income statement 0 0

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale 0 0

Total (20) 0

8.  Finance costs 2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

Interest on loans and overdrafts 0 0

Interest on obligations under finance leases 2 2

Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

Main finance cost 0 0

Contingent finance cost 0 0

Interest on late payment of commercial debt 0 0

Other interest expense 0 0

Total interest expense 2 2

Other finance costs 0 0

Total 2 2
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9.  Operating leases

As lessee

2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments 1,586 1,376

Contingent rents 0 0

Sub-lease payments 0 0

Total 1,586 1,376

Total future minimum lease payments 2011-12 2010-11

Payable: £000 £000

Not later than one year 1,545 1,341

Between one and five years 3,379 3,556

After 5 years 874 120

Total 5,798 5,017

Total future sublease payments expected to be received 0 0

As lessor

2011-12 2010-11

Rental revenue £000 £000

Rent 0 0

Contingent rent 0 0

Other 0 0

Total rental revenue 0 0

Total future minimum lease payments 2011-12 2010-11

Receivable: £000 £000

Not later than one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After 5 years 0 0

Total 0 0

[There are no significant leasing arrangement where the Trust is the lessor.  
 

23



Velindre Trust Annual Accounts 2011-12

10.  Employee costs and numbers

2011-12 2010-112008-09

10.1  Employee costs Permanently Agency Staff on £000 £000

employed Staff  Inward

staff  Secondment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 55,961 884 700 57,545 61,035

Social security costs 4,092 0 46 4,138 3,974

Employer contributions to NHS Pensions Scheme 6,905 0 59 6,964 6,882

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0 0

Total 66,958 884 805 68,647 71,891

Of the total above:

Charged to capital 140 371

Charged to revenue 68,507 71,520

68,647 71,891

10.2  Average number of employees

Permanently Agency Staff on Total Total

Employed Staff  Inward

 Secondment

Number Number Number Number Number

Medical and dental 79 0 2 81 76

Ambulance staff 0 0 0 0 0

Administrative and estates 934 25 12 971 1,005

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 61 0 0 61 63

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 294 0 0 294 299

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0 0 0 0 0

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 324 0 0 324 296

Social care staff 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1,692 25 14 1,731 1,739

10.3  Employee benefits

The Trust does not have an employee benefit scheme. 
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10.4 Reporting of other compensation schemes - exit packages

Total number Total number

of exit of exit 

packages by packages by 

cost band cost band

Number Number

2011-12 2010-11

Exit package cost band

<£10,000 2 3

£10,000 to £25,000 9 9

£25,000 to £50,000 3 8

£50,000 to £100,000 4 2

£100,000 to £150,000 0 0

£150,000 to £200,000 0 0

£200,000+ 0 0

Total number of exit packages by type 18 22

Total resource cost £ 638,962 578,686

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in 
accordance with the provisions of the NHS Scheme or the Trust 
Voluntary Early Release scheme  Exit costs in this note are 
accounted for in full in the year of departure.  Where the  Trust 
has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the 
Trust and not by the NHS pensions scheme. Ill-health retirement 
costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in 
the table. 
            
This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages taken 
by staff leaving in the year.  Note: The expense associated with 
these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a 
previous period. 
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10.5 Remuneration Relationship

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce.  
The banded remuneration of the highest-paid director in Velindre NHS Trust in the financial 
year 2011-12 was £130-135k (2010-11, £85-90k). This was 5 times ( 2010-11, 4 times ) the 
median remuneration of the workforce, which was £26k (2010-2011, £25k). A new Chief 
Executive was appointed from the 1st of June 2011  
  
In 2011-12, 4 employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director. 
Remuneration ranged from £9k to £169k. 
  
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind 
as well as severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the 
cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. In addition the remuneration which has been used 
to calculate these amounts have been annualised for all employees where there has been 
either a part year effect or individuals are on reduced hours.   
  
In establishing the highest paid Director (Chief Executive) the Trust has taken into account the 
proportion of remuneration received for Clinical and Director responsibilities by other 
Directors. 
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11.  Pensions

Pension costs 
 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  
Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions 
website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme 
that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that 
would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to 
the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the 
scheme for the accounting period.   
 
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ 
materially from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial 
valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with 
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows: 
 
 
a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation 
 
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under 
the scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the 
contribution rates.  
The last formal actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for 
the year ending 31 March 2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due 
for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal actuarial valuations for unfunded public 
service schemes have been suspended by HM Treasury on value for money grounds while 
consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions, and while future scheme 
terms are developed as part of the reforms to public service pension provision. Employer and 
employee contribution rates are currently being determined under the new scheme design. 
 
 
b) Accounting valuation 
 
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of 
the reporting period. Actuarial assessments are undertaken in intervening years between formal 
valuations using updated membership data are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for 
financial reporting purposes. However, as the interval since the last formal valuation now 
exceeds four years, the valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2012 is based on 
detailed membership data as at 31 March 2010 updated to 31 March 2012 with summary global 
member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology 
prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM 
Treasury have also been used. 
 
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, 
which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, 
published annually.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website.  Copies can 
also be obtained from The Stationery Office. 
 
c) Scheme provisions  
 
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is 
an illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or 
the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be obtained. 
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11.1  Retirement costs due to ill-health

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 
1995 section and of the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 
1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are 
practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total 
pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service. 
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for 
an additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This 
new provision is known as “pension commutation”. 
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) 
Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September 
in the previous calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) will be used to 
replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI). 
 
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are 
permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death 
gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual 
pension for death after retirement is payable 
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not 
funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the 
employer. 
 
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase 
AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary 
Contributions (FSAVC) providers. 
 
 

During 2011-12 there were 3 (2010-11 6)early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of 
ill-health. The estimated additional pension costs of these ill-health retirements will be £119,695 
(2010-11 £428,812).  The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business 
Services Authority - Pensions Division. 
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12.  Public Sector Payment Policy

12.1  Prompt payment code - measure of compliance

2011-12 2011-12 2010-11 2010-11

Number £000 Number £000

NHS

Total bills paid in year 1,726 12,889 2,863 13,932

Total bills paid within target 1,327 9,591 2,807 13,819

Percentage of bills paid within target 76.9% 74.4% 98.0% 99.2%

Non-NHS

Total bills paid in year 29,626 79,691 28,668 84,976

Total bills paid within target 28,290 78,286 27,438 82,966

Percentage of bills paid within target 95.5% 98.2% 95.7% 97.6%

Total

Total bills paid in year 31,352 92,580 31,531 98,908

Total bills paid within target 29,617 87,877 30,245 96,785

Percentage of bills paid within target 94.5% 94.9% 95.9% 97.9%

12.2  The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2011-12 2010-11

£ £

Amounts included within finance costs from claims made under legislation 0 0

    

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under legislation 0 0

Total 0 0

 
 
 

The Welsh Government requires that trusts pay all their trade creditors in accordance with the CBI 
prompt payment code and Government Accounting rules.  The Welsh Government has set as part of 
the trust financial targets a requirement to pay 95% of the number of non-NHS creditors within 30 
days of delivery or receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is the later. 
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13.  Property, plant and equipment :

2011-12

Cost or valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2011 10,810 41,561 140 10,084 20,359 1,133 16,482 1,425 101,994

Indexation 0 1,682 5 0 0 0 0 0 1,687

Revaluation 0 480 0 0 1,804 (173) (168) (390) 1,553

Additions - purchased 0 502 0 625 982 386 2,410 23 4,928

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers from/(into) other NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 (905) 540 106 259 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 (643) 0 (170) (145) (958)

Impairments 0 0 0 (444) 0 0 0 0 (444)

At 31 March 2012 10,810 44,225 145 9,360 23,042 1,452 18,813 913 108,760

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 0 2,393 17 0 13,093 1,042 6,598 1,347 24,490

Indexation 0 114 1 0 0 0 0 0 115

Revaluation 0 480 0 0 1,804 (173) (168) (390) 1,553

Transfers from/(into) other NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 (633) 0 (170) (145) (948)

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 1,386 9 0 1,534 37 2,523 32 5,521

At 31 March 2012 0 4,373 27 0 15,798 906 8,783 844 30,731

Net book value

At 1 April 2011 10,810 39,168 123 10,084 7,266 91 9,884 78 77,504

Net book value

At 31 March 2012 10,810 39,852 118 9,360 7,244 546 10,030 69 78,029

Net book value at 31 March 2012 comprises :

Purchased 10,810 33,824 118 9,360 7,073 546 10,030 69 71,830

Donated 0 6,028 0 0 171 0 0 0 6,199

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 10,810 39,852 118 9,360 7,244 546 10,030 69 78,029

Asset Financing:

Owned 10,810 39,852 118 9,360 7,041 546 10,030 46 77,803

Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 203 0 0 23 226

On-SoFP PFI contract 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PFI residual interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2012 10,810 39,852 118 9,360 7,244 546 10,030 69 78,029

The net book value of land, buildings and dwellings at 31 March 2012 comprises :

£000

Freehold 50,492

Long Leasehold 0

Short Leasehold 288

50,780

Land

Buildings, 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under 

construc-tion 

and 

payments on 

account

Total
Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

Equipment

Information 

Technology

Furniture 

and fittings

Of the totals at 31 March 2010,   £nil related to land valued at open market value and £nil related to buildings, installations and fittings valued at open market 

Of the totals at 31 March 2010,   £nil related to land valued at open market value and £nil related to buildings, installations and fittings valued at open market 

The figure included in Revaluation of £1,553K relates to an adjustment to account for the value of second hand assets purchased in 
2011/12 and previous years.  
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13.  Property, plant and equipment :

2010-11

Cost or valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2010 10,810 41,325 140 7,084 19,710 1,133 8,488 1,162 89,852

Indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions - purchased 0 236 0 3,000 490 0 6,600 0 10,326

Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 159 0 0 0 159

Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers from/(into) other NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,394 263 1,657

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2011 10,810 41,561 140 10,084 20,359 1,133 16,482 1,425 101,994

Depreciation

At 1 April 2010 0 1,002 9 0 11,558 1,004 4,525 1,092 19,190

Indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers from/(into) other NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 680 198 878

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 1,391 8 0 1,535 38 1,393 57 4,422

At 31 March 2011 0 2,393 17 0 13,093 1,042 6,598 1,347 24,490

Net book value

at 1 April 2010 10,810 40,323 131 7,084 8,152 129 3,963 70 70,662

Net book value

at 31 March 2011 10,810 39,168 123 10,084 7,266 91 9,884 78 77,504

Net book value at 31 March 2011 comprises :

Purchased 10,810 33,188 123 10,084 7,036 91 9,884 78 71,294

Donated 0 5,980 0 0 230 0 0 0 6,210

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 31 March 2011 10,810 39,168 123 10,084 7,266 91 9,884 78 77,504

Asset Financing:

Owned 10,810 39,168 123 10,084 7,266 91 9,884 68 77,494

Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 10

On-SoFP PFI contract 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PFI residual interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 31 March 2011 10,810 39,168 123 10,084 7,266 91 9,884 78 77,504

The net book value of land, buildings and dwellings at 31 March 2011 comprises :

£000

Freehold 49,758

Long Leasehold 0

Short Leasehold 343

50,101

Land

Buildings, 

excluding 

dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under 

construc-tion 

and 

payments on 

account

Total
Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

Equipment

Information 

Technology

Furniture 

and fittings

Of the totals at 31 March 2010,   £nil related to land valued at open market value and £nil related to buildings, installations and fittings valued at open market 

Of the totals at 31 March 2010,   £nil related to land valued at open market value and £nil related to buildings, installations and fittings valued at open market 
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Disclosures: 
 
Donated assets - Velindre NHS Trust did not receive any donated asset during this Financial Year 
 
 

Valuations 
The Trusts Land and Buildings were revalued by the District Valuation Service with an effective date 
of 1st April 2009. 
The valuation has been prepared in accordance with the terms of the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors' Valuation Standards, 6th edition. 
The Trust is required to apply the revaluation model set out in IAS 16 and value its capital assets to 
fair value. Fair value is defined by IAS16 as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged 
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms length transaction. 
This has been undertaken on the assumption that the property is sold as part of the continuing 
enterprise in occupation. 
Assets are depreciated over the following lives 
                Land              not depreciated 
                Buildings        as determined by the District Valuation service 
                Equipment      5-15 years 
 
Impairments -MEA 
 
The District carried out a valuation exercise in March 2012 on the building work undertaken at 
Velindre Cancer Centre for the new Linacs. This resulted in a impairment of buildings assets under 
construction of £444,000  
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13.2 Non-current assets held for sale

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance b/f 1 April 2011 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plus assets classified as held for 

sale in year 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets sold in year 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less impairment for assets held for 

sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets no longer classified as 

held for sale for reasons other than 

disposal by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance c/f 31 March 2012 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance b/f 1 April 2010 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plus assets classified as held for 

sale in year 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets sold in year 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less impairment for assets held for 

sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Less assets no longer classified as 

held for sale for reasons other than 

disposal by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance c/f 31 March 2011 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other assets TotalLand

Buildings, 

including 

dwellings

Other 

property 

plant and 

equipment

Intangible 

assets

. 
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14.  Intangible assets

2011-12

Cost or valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2011 21,502 4,015 0 0 0 0 25,517

Revaluation 0 0 0 0

Additions

 - purchased 7,734 457 0 0 0 0 8,191

 - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals (2,982) 0 0 0 0 0 (2,982)

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross cost at 31 March 2012 26,254 4,472 0 0 0 0 30,726

Amortisation

Accumulated amortisation at                     

1 April 2011 15,342 971 0 0 0 0 16,313

Revaluation 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals (2,970) 0 0 0 0 0 (2,970)

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 2,323 810 0 0 0 0 3,133

Accumulated amortisation                      

at 31 March 2012 14,695 1,781 0 0 0 0 16,476

Net book value at 1 April 2011 6,160 3,044 0 0 0 0 9,204

Net book value at 31 March 2012 11,559 2,691 0 0 0 0 14,250

Net book value 

Purchased 11,559 0 0 0 0 0 11,559

Internally Generated 0 2,691 0 0 0 0 2,691

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2012 11,559 2,691 0 0 0 0 14,250

Develop-

ment 

expenditure 

internally 

generated

Total

Computer 

software 

purchased

Computer 

software 

internally 

developed

Licenses 

and trade-

marks

Patents

EU 

Emission 

Trading 

Scheme
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14.  Intangible assets

2010-11

Cost or valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2010 18,211 2,298 0 0 690 0 21,199

Revaluation 0 0 0 0

Additions

 - purchased 3,291 1,027 0 0 0 0 4,318

 - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 690 0 0 (690) 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross cost at 31 March 2011 21,502 4,015 0 0 0 0 25,517

Amortisation

Accumulated amortisation at                         

1 April 2010 11,694 391 0 0 0 0 12,085

Revaluation 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversals of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 3,648 580 0 0 0 0 4,228

Accumulated amortisation at                       

31 March 2011 15,342 971 0 0 0 0 16,313

Net book value at 1 April 2010 6,517 1,907 0 0 690 0 9,114

Net book value at 31 March 2011 6,160 3,044 0 0 0 0 9,204

Net book value 

Purchased 6,160 0 0 0 0 0 6,160

Internally Generated 0 3,044 0 0 0 0 3,044

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2011 6,160 3,044 0 0 0 0 9,204

Develop-

ment 

expenditur

e internally 

generated

Total

Computer 

software 

purchased

Computer 

software 

internally 

developed

Licenses 

and trade-

marks

Patents

EU 

Emission 

Trading 

Scheme
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14.  Intangible assets

15.  Revaluation reserve balance for intangible assets

2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000

At 1 April 0 0

Changes (itemised)  0 0

At 31 March 0 0

 

An assessment is performed on an annual basis to determine that the assets are still available for use and that there is a 
continued market for their use. The fair values are based on the original cost and amortised based upon finite lives 
detailed below and are as detailed in the note to the accounts 
 
The useful lives and amortisation rates used are 3 and 5 years and no intangible assets are assessed as having indefinite 
useful lives 
 
No intangible assets have been acquired by Government Grant 
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16.  Impairments

Impairments in the period arose from: Property, plant Intangible Property, plant Intangible

& equipment assets & equipment assets

£000 £000 £000 £000

Loss or damage from normal operations 0 0 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 29 0 0 0

Over specification of assets (Gold Plating) 0 0 0 0

Loss as a result of a catastrophe 0 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0 0

Changes in market price 415 0 0 0

Other (specify) 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged to operating expenses 444 0 0 0

Impairments charged in the year to 

444 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

17.  Capital commitments

Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at the statement of financial position sheet date were:

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 714 599

Intangible assets 7,682 2,613

Total 8,396 3,212

Operating expenses in Statement of Comprehensive 

Income

Revaluation reserve

2011-12 2010-11

Major building work has been undertaken at Velindre Cancer Centre over the last 3 
years to site 2 new Linacs. As part of this exercise the District Valuers Office has 
reviewed the value of this building work as a IFRS 
Modern equivalent asset Value. As a result of the valuation an impairment of 415  
was required  
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18.  Inventories

18.1 Inventories

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Drugs 322 363

Consumables 458 502

Energy 0 0

Work in progress 0 0

Other 804 1,043

Total 1,584 1,908

Of which held at net realisable value: 0 0

18.2  Inventories recognised in expenses 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period 0 0

Write-down of inventories (including losses) 0 0

Reversal of write-downs that reduced the expense 0 0

Total 0 0
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19.  Trade and other receivables

19.1  Trade and other receivables

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Current £000 £000

Welsh Government 570 7,724

Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee 0 18

Welsh Health Boards 4,776 3,561

Welsh NHS Trusts 542 93

Non - Welsh Trusts 479 347

Other NHS 0 0

Welsh Risk Pool 12 155

Welsh Local Authorities 0 0

Other Local Authorities 0 0

Capital debtors 0 0

Other debtors 3,069 4,827

Provision for impairment of trade receivables (139) (82)

Pension Prepayments 0 0

Other prepayments and accrued income 3,501 2,503

Sub-total 12,810 19,146

Non-current

Welsh Government 0 0

Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee 0 0

Welsh Health Boards 0 0

Welsh NHS Trusts 0 0

Non - Welsh Trusts 0 0

Other NHS 0 0

Welsh Risk Pool 0 0

Welsh Local Authorities 0 0

Other Local Authorities 0 0

Capital debtors 0 0

Other debtors 0 0

Provision for impairment of trade receivables 0 0

Pension Prepayments 0 0

Other prepayments and accrued income 0 0

Sub-total 0 0

Total trade and other receivables 12,810 19,146

No interest is charged on trade receivables.   
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19.2  Receivables past their due date but not impaired

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

By up to 3 months 461 398

By 3 to 6 months 358 119

By more than 6 months 683 421

Balance at end of financial year/period 1,502 938

19.3  Provision for the impairment of receivables

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Balance at beginning of the year (82) (95)

Transfer to other NHS Wales body 0 0

Amount written off during the year 0 53

Amount recovered during the year 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in receivables impaired (57) (40)

Balance at 31 March (139) (82)

In determining whether a debt is impaired consideration is given to the age of the debt and the results 
of actions taken to recover the debt, including reference to credit agencies. 
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20.  Other financial assets

31 March 31 March 

2012 2011

Non-current £000 £000

Finance lease receivables 0 0

Financial assets carried at fair value through income statement 0 0

Held to maturity investments carried at amortised cost 0 0

Available for sale financial assets carried at fair value 0 0

Loans carried at amortised cost 0 0

Total 0 0

Current

Finance lease receivables 0 0

Financial assets carried at fair value through income statement 0 0

Held to maturity investments carried at amortised cost 0 0

Available for sale financial assets carried at fair value 0 0

Loans carried at amortised cost 0 0

Total 0 0

21.  Other assets

31 March 31 March 

2012 2011

Non-current £000 £000

Other assets 0 0

Total 0 0

Current

EU Emmissions trading scheme allowances 0 0

Other assets 0 0

Total 0 0
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22.  Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Opening Balance 6,397 83

Net change in year 10 6,314

Closing Balance 6,407 6,397

Made up of:

Cash with Government Banking Service (GBS) 8,421 7,338

Commercial banks 0 0

Cash in hand 10 9

Current investments 13,800 0

22,231 7,347

Bank overdraft - GBS (2,024) (793)

Bank overdraft - Commercial 0 (157)

Cash & cash equivalents as in Statement of Cash Flows 20,207 6,397

Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP
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23.  Trade and other payables at the SoFP Date 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Current £000 £000

Welsh Government 10,972 1,212

Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee 212 340

Welsh Health Boards 2,315 1,590

Welsh NHS Trusts 122 247

Other NHS 4,911 9,472

Welsh Local Authorities 33 2

Other Local Authorities 0 0

Income tax and social security 2 5

Non-NHS trade payables - revenue 2,307 2,611

Non-NHS trade payables - capital 4,879 3,338

Rentals due under operating leases 0 0

Pensions: staff 0 4

Accruals 3,876 4,651

Deferred Income 1,110 1,022

Other liabilities - all other payables 0 0

Sub-total 30,739 24,494

Non-current

Welsh Government 0 0

Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee 0 0

Welsh Health Boards 0 0

Welsh NHS Trusts 0 0

Other NHS 0 0

Welsh Local Authorities 0 0

Other Local Authorities 0 0

Income tax and social security 0 0

Non-NHS trade payables - revenue 0 0

Non-NHS trade payables - capital 0 0

Rentals due under operating leases 0 0

Pensions: staff 0 0

Accruals 0 0

Deferred Income 0 0

Other liabilities - all other payables 0 0

Sub-total 0 0

Total 30,739 24,494

It is intended to pay all invoices within the 30 day period directed by the Welsh Government. 
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24.  Borrowings 31 March 31 March

Current 2012 2011

£000 £000

Bank overdraft - GBS 2,024 0

Bank overdraft - Commercial bank 0 0

Loans from:

     Welsh Government 0 0

     Other entities 0 0

PFI liabilities:

Main liability 0 0

Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0

Finance lease liabilities 61 12

Other 0 0

Total 2,085 12

Non-current

Bank overdraft - GBS 0 793

Bank overdraft - Commercial bank 0 157

Loans from:

     Welsh Government 0 0

     Other entities 0 0

PFI liabilities:

Main liability 0 0

Lifecycle replacement received in advance 0 0

Finance lease liabilities 171 30

Other 0 0

Total 171 980

24.2  Loan advance/strategic assistance funding 

The Trust has received no loan advance or strategic funding from Welsh Government 
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25. Other financial liabilities

Current 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through income statement. 0 0

Non-current

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through income statement. 0 0

26.  Other liabilities

Current

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Lease incentives 2 2

PFI asset - deferred credit 0 0

Other (Please specify) 0 0

2 2

Non-current

Lease incentives 0 2

PFI asset - deferred credit 0 0

Other (Please specify) 0 0

0 2
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27.  Provisions

2011-12

Current

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Clinical negligence 213 0 0 0 0 5 (29) (189) 0 0

Personal injury 37 0 0 0 0 40 (43) 0 0 34

All other losses and special payments 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) 0 0

Defence legal fees and other administration 39 0 0 0 0 20 (5) (18) 36

Pensions relating to: former directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: other staff 21 0 18 0 5 (22) 0 0 22

Restructurings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 311 0 0 18 0 70 (99) (208) 0 92

Non Current

Clinical negligence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Personal injury 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All other losses and special payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Defence legal fees and other administration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: former directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: other staff 187 0 (18) 0 0 0 0 0 169

Restructurings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 106 0 0 0 11 0 0 117

Total 293 0 0 (18) 0 11 0 0 0 286

TOTAL

Clinical negligence 213 0 0 0 0 5 (29) (189) 0 0

Personal injury 37 0 0 0 0 40 (43) 0 0 34

All other losses and special payments 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) 0 0

Defence legal fees and other administration 39 0 0 0 0 20 (5) (18) 36

Pensions relating to: former directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: other staff 208 0 0 0 5 (22) 0 0 191

Restructurings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 106 0 0 0 11 0 0 117

Total 604 0 0 0 0 81 (99) (208) 0 378

Expected timing of cash flows:

Timing period yet to be confirmed In the remainder of spending Between Thereafter

review to 31 March 2015 1 April 2015 Totals

£000 31 March 2020 £000

Clinical negligence 0 0 0 0

Personal injury 34 0 0 34

All other losses and special payments 0 0 0 0

Defence legal fees and other administration 36 0 0 36

Pensions - former directors 0 0 0 0

Pensions - other staff 63 73 55 191

Restructuring 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 117 117

Total 133 73 172 378

At 1 April 

2011

Structured 

settlement 

cases 

transferr-ed 

to Risk 

Pool

Arising 

during the 

year

Reversed 

unused

Transfers 

between 

current and  

non current

At 31 March   

2012

Transfers 

to creditors 

Utilised 

during the 

year

Transfers 

(to)/from 

other NHS 

body

Unwinding 

of discount

Included in other is the cost of decommissioning of Cessium sources £117,000 
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27.  Provisions (continued)

2010-11

Current

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Clinical negligence 41 0 0 0 0 227 (40) (15) 0 213

Personal injury 88 0 0 0 0 90 (124) (17) 0 37

All other losses and special payments 0 0 0 0 0 172 (171) 0 0 1

Defence legal fees and other administration 55 0 0 0 0 22 (20) (18) 39

Pensions relating to: former directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: other staff 19 0 14 0 10 (22) 0 0 21

Restructurings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 203 0 0 14 0 521 (377) (50) 0 311

Non Current

Clinical negligence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Personal injury 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All other losses and special payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Defence legal fees and other administration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: former directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: other staff 201 0 (14) 0 0 0 0 0 187

Restructurings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 106 0 0 0 0 0 0 106

Total 307 0 0 (14) 0 0 0 0 0 293

TOTAL

Clinical negligence 41 0 0 0 0 227 (40) (15) 0 213

Personal injury 88 0 0 0 0 90 (124) (17) 0 37

All other losses and special payments 0 0 0 0 0 172 (171) 0 0 1

Defence legal fees and other administration 55 0 0 0 0 22 (20) (18) 39

Pensions relating to: former directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to: other staff 220 0 0 0 10 (22) 0 0 208

Restructurings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 106 0 0 0 0 0 0 106

Total 510 0 0 0 0 521 (377) (50) 0 604

At 31 March   

2011

Transfer 

to 

creditors

Utilised 

during the 

year

Transfers 

(to)/from 

other NHS 

body

Transfer 

between 

current 

and  non 

current

At 31 

March 

2010

Structured 

settlement 

cases 

transferr-ed 

to Risk 

Pool

Arising 

during the 

year

Reversed 

unused

Unwinding 

of discount

 
 

Included in other is the cost of decommissioning of Cessium sources £106,000 
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28.  Finance leases 

28.1  Finance leases obligations (as lessee)

Amounts payable under finance leases:

LAND 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments

Within one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After five years 0 0

Less finance charges allocated to future periods 0 0

Minimum lease payments 0 0

Included in:

     Current borrowings 0 0

     Non-current borrowings 0 0

Total 0 0

Present value of minimum lease payments

Within one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After five years 0 0

Total present value of minimum lease payments 0 0

Included in:

     Current borrowings 0 0

     Non-current borrowings 0 0
Total 0 0

There were no significant Leasing arrangments 
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28.1  Finance leases obligations (as lessee) continued

31 March 31 March

Amounts payable under finance leases: 2012 2011

BUILDINGS £000 £000

Minimum lease payments

Within one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After five years 0 0

Less finance charges allocated to future periods 0 0

Total minimum lease payments 0 0

Current borrowings 0 0

Non-current borrowings 0 0

Total 0 0

Present value of minimum lease payments

Within one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After five years 0 0

Total present value of minimum lease payments 0 0

Included in: Current borrowings 0 0

Non-current borrowings 0 0

Total 0 0

OTHER 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Minimum lease payments £000 £000

Within one year 61 12

Between one and five years 171 30

After five years 0 0

Less finance charges allocated to future periods 0 0

Total minimum lease payments 232 42

Included in: Current borrowings 61 12

Non-current borrowings 171 30

Total 232 42

Present value of minimum lease payments

Within one year 61 12

Between one and five years 171 30

After five years 0 0

Total present value of minimum lease payments 232 42

Included in: Current borrowings 61 12

Non-current borrowings 171 30

Total 232 42
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28.2  Finance lease receivables (as lessor)

Amounts receivable under finance leases:

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Gross investment in leases

Within one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After five years 0 0

Less finance charges allocated to future periods 0 0

Gross lease payments 0 0

Included in:

     Current borrowings 0 0

     Non-current borrowings 0 0

Total 0 0

Present value of minimum lease payments

Within one year 0 0

Between one and five years 0 0

After five years 0 0

Total present value of minimum lease payments 0 0

Included in:

     Current borrowings 0 0

     Non-current borrowings 0 0
Total 0 0

 
There are no finance lease receivables. 
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28.3  Rental Revenue 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Contingent rent 0 0

Other 0 0

Total rental revenue 0 0

29.  Private finance transactions 

Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) / Public Private Partnerships (PPP)

 
29.  Private finance transactions  Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) / Public 
Private Partnerships (PPP)  
 
The trust has no PFI or PPP schemes deemed to be "on or off balance 
sheet." 
 

Velindre NHS Trust has not entered into any new contracts to lease (building assets) under finance 
leases during 2011-12. 
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30. Financial risk

Maturity of financial liabilities 31 March 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

In one year 0 0

In more than one year but not more than two years 0 0

In more than two years but not more than five years 0 0

In more than five years 0 0

Total 0 0

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer/Director of Finance 

IFRS 7, Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the role that financial 
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its 
activities.  
NHS trusts are not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Financial instruments 
play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of the listed companies to 
which IFRS 7 mainly applies. NHS trusts have limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and 
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to 
change the risks facing NHS trusts in undertaking its activities. 
 
The NHS trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department within 
parameters defined formally within the NHS trust's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the 
board of directors.  NHS trust treasury activity is subject to review by the NHS trust's internal auditors. 
 
Liquidity risk 
NHS trust's net operating costs are incurred under annual service agreements with various Health bodies, 
which are financed from resources voted annually by parliament. NHS trusts also largely finance their 
capital expenditure from funds made available from the Welsh Government under agreed borrowing limits. 
NHS trusts are not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks. 
 
Interest-rate risks 
The great majority of NHS trust's financial assets and financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of interest. 
NHS trusts are not, therefore, exposed to significant interest-rate risk. 
 
Foreign currency risk 
NHS trusts have no or negligible foreign currency income or expenditure and therefore are not exposed to 
significant foreign currency risk. 
 
Credit Risk 
Because the majority of the trust's income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the trust 
has low exposure to credit risk.  The maximum exposures are in receivables from customers as disclosed 
in the Trade and other receivables note. 
 
 
General 
The powers of the NHS trust to invest and borrow are limited.  The Board has determined that in order to 
maximise income from cash balances held, any balance of cash which is not required will be invested.   
The trust does not borrow from the private sector.  All other financial instruments are held for the sole 
purpose of managing the cash flow of the trust on a day to day basis or arise from the operating activities of 
the trust.  The management of risks around these financial instruments therefore relates primarily to the 
trust's overall arrangements for managing risks to their financial position, rather than the trust's treasury 
management procedures. 
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31. Financial Instuments

Financial assets At "fair value" Loans and Available Total

through I&E receivables for sale

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

NHS receivables 6,367 0 0 6,367

Cash at bank and in hand 20,207 0 0 20,207

Other financial assets 2,533 0 0 2,533

Total at 31 March 2012 29,107 0 0 29,107

Financial liabilities At "fair value" Other Total

through I&E

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

PFI and finance lease obligations 232 0 232

Other financial liabilities 29,627 0 29,627

Total at 31 March 2012 29,859 0 29,859

Financial assets At "fair value" Loans and Available Total

through I&E receivables for sale

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

NHS receivables 11,743 0 0 11,743

Cash at bank and in hand 6,397 0 0 6,397

Other financial assets 4,297 0 0 4,297

Total at 31 March 2011 22,437 0 0 22,437

Financial liabilities At "fair value" Other Total

through I&E

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

PFI and finance lease obligations 42 0 42

Other financial liabilities 23,463 0 23,463

Total at 31 March 2011 23,505 0 23,505

Financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical 
of listed companies.  The NHS trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial 
assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to 
change the risks facing the NHS trust in undertaking its activities. 
 
 
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at 
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair value. 
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32.  Financial performance targets

The Trust has met 3 out of 3 of its financial targets.  Details are given below:

32.1  Breakeven 2011-12

£000

Target retained surplus 0

Actual retained surplus 43

Variance (43)

32.2   External financing 31 March 31 March

The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000

External financing limit set by the Welsh Government 6,634 (1,314)

Cash flow financing 6,624 (1,314)

Finance leases taken out in the year 0 0

Other capital receipts 0 0

External financing requirement 6,624 (1,314)

Undershoot (overshoot) 10 0

The Trust has achieved its external financing limit.

32.3 Creditor payment

The Trust is required to pay 95% of the number of non-NHS bills within 30 days of receipt of goods or

a valid invoice (whichever is the later). The Trust has achieved the following results: 2011-12

Total number of non-NHS bills paid 2011-12 29,606

Total number of non-NHS bills paid within target 28,272

Percentage of non-NHS bills paid within target 95.5%

The Trust has met the target.

 
 
The Trust has met it's current year and on-going breakeven requirement in full. 
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33.  Contingencies

33.1 Contingent liabilities 

Provision has not been made in these accounts for 31 March 31 March

the following amounts: 2012 2011

£000 £000

Legal claims for alleged medical or employer negligence 1,497 142

Doubtful debts 0 0

Equal pay cases 0 0

Defence costs 0 0

Other (Please specify) 0 0

Total value of disputed claims 1,497 142

Amount recovered under insurance arrangements in the event of 

these claims being successful (1,422) 0

Net contingent liability 75 142

33.2 Contingent assets

34. Third party assets

35.  Events after reporting period

Other litigation claims could arise in the future due to known incidents.  The expenditure which may arise from 
such claims cannot be determined and no provision has been made for them. 
 
Liability for Permanent Injury Benefit under the NHS Injury Benefit Scheme lies with the employer. Individual 
claims to the NHS Pensions Agency could arise due to known incidents. 
      
A construction contract for the delivery of additional radiotherapy capacity has been recently completed 
following a significany delay, the impact of which is not yet clear. 

The Trust has no Third Party Assets. 

The Trust has no contingent assets. 

At 1st June 2012 the functions and their associated assets and liabilities will be transferring from all other Welsh 
LHBs and NHS Trusts to Velindre NHS Trust, to form the NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership (NWSSP). In 
accordance with the FReM, the transfer of functions will be treated as a merger, and all transactions and 
balances relating to these functions will be shown in future years in Velindre NHS Trust’s financial statements. 
The NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership (NWSSP) comprises of the following services:- 
Audit and Assurance 
Contractor Services 
Cental Team eBusiness Services 
Employment Services 
Facilities Services 
Legal &Risk Services 
Prescribing  Services 
Procurement Services 
Welsh Risk Pool Services 
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36. Related Party transactions

Payments to Receipts from Amounts owed Amounts due

related party related party to related party from related party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Payments to Receipts from Amounts owed Amounts due

related party related party to related party from related party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Welsh Government 14,870 64,822 10,972 570

WHSSC 0 29,464 212 0

AMBU LHB 2,181 6,863 274 565

Aneurin Bevan LHB 2,879 16,343 637 979

Betsi Cadwaladwr LHB 1,125 2,740 282 210

Cardiff & Vale LHB 2,644 18,844 436 1,891

Cwm Taff 1,424 7,585 114 673

Hwyel Dda 1,703 2,885 517 121

Powys 148 1,682 55 337

Public Health 110 1,464 25 514

Welsh Ambulance 686 172 97 28

      

      

TOTAL 27,770 152,864 13,621 5,888

'The Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Welsh Minster for Health and Social Services.   
 
'During the year none of the board members or members of the key management staff or parties 'related to them has 
undertaken any material transactions with the Trust 
 

 
The trust is a body corporate established by order of the Welsh Minster for Health and Social Services.   
During the year none of the board members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken 
any material transactions with the trust. 
 
 

The Welsh Government is regarded as a related party. During the year the Trust has had a significant number of material 
transactions with the Welsh Government and with other entities for which the Welsh Government is regarded as the parent body, 
namely; 

The Trust Board is the Corporate Trustee of Velindre Charitable Funds. During the year the Trust received £1,057,000 (£1,037,000 
in 2010/2011), from Velindre Charitable Funds. 
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37.  Intra Government balances

Receivables: Receivables: Payables: Payables:

Current Non-current Current Non-current

£000 £000 £000 £000

2011-12:

Welsh Government 570 0 10,972 0

Welsh Local Health Boards 4776 0 2,315 0

Welsh NHS Trusts 542 0 122 0

WHSSC 0 0 212 0

All English Health Bodies 472 0 4,911 0

All N. Ireland Health Bodies 4 0 0 0

All Scottish Health Bodies 3 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 12 0 0 0

Credit note provision 0 0 0 0

Sub total 6,379 0 18,532 0

Other Central Government Bodies 

Other Government Departments 0 0 0 0

Revenue & Customs 853 0 2 0

Local Authorities 0 0 33 0

Balances with Public Corporations and trading funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to Government 5,578 0 12,172 0

TOTAL 12,810 0 30,739 0

Receivables: Receivables: Payables: Payables:

Current Non-current Current Non-current

£000 £000 £000 £000

2010-11:

Welsh Government 7,724 0 1,212 0

Welsh Local Health Boards 3,561 0 1,590 0

Welsh NHS Trusts 93 0 247 0

WHSSC 18 0 340 0

All English Health Bodies 323 0 9,472 0

All N. Ireland Health Bodies 12 0 0 0

All Scottish Health Bodies 12 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 1,890 0 1,658 0

Credit note provision 0 0 0 0

Sub total 13,633 0 14,519 0

Other Central Government Bodies 

Other Government Departments 0 0 0 0

Revenue & Customs 1,049 0 14 0

Local Authorities 0 0 2 0

Balances with Public Corporations and trading funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to Government 4,464 0 9,959 0

TOTAL 19,146 0 24,494 0
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38.  Losses and special payments

Gross loss to the Exchequer

Number of cases and associated amounts paid out or written-off during the financial year

Number £ Number £ 

Clinical negligence 2 29,300 1 17,200

Personal injury 3 42,906 1 38,005

All other losses and special payments 0 0 0 0

Total 5 72,206 2 55,205

Analysis of cases which exceed £250,000 and all other cases

Amounts Approved to

paid out in Cumulative write-off

year amount in year

Cases exceeding £250,000 £ £ £

Case reference Case type

There are no cases exceeding £250,000

Sub-total 0 0 0

All other cases 72,206 117,751 55,205

Total cases 72,206 117,751 55,205

Approved to write-off 

to 31 march 2012

Amounts paid out during 

year to 31 march 2012

Losses and special payments are charged to the Income statement in accordance with IFRS but are recorded 
in the losses and special payments register when payment is made.  Therefore this note is prepared on a 
cash basis. 
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39.  Pooled budgets 
 
Velindre  NHS trust has no pooled budgets. 
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40.  Operating segments

Costs

Segment Attributable Surplus/

Income to Segment (Deficit)

£000 £000 £000

Cancer Services 51,616 (52,025) (409)

Welsh Blood Services 31,303 (31,188) 115

Corporate Services 1,719 (1,380) 339

NHS Wales Information Service 43,234 (43,234) 0

Cardiac Services Coordinating Group 272 (270) 2

Cancer Services Coordinating Group 240 (240) 0

National Collaborating Centre for Cancer 862 (862) 0

National Institute for Social Care and Health Research 5,197 (5,201) (4)

Total 134,443 (134,400) 43

[Disclose: [Provide reconciliations of: [Desirable disclosures:  Cash flow from:  
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STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

AS ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER OF THE TRUST

The Welsh Ministers have directed that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer to

the Trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable Officers, including their responsibility for the

propriety and regularity of the public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper 

records, are set out in the Accountable Officer's Memorandum issued by the Welsh Government.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in

my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Date: 31 May 2012 Mr Simon Dean, Chief Executive Officer

The total value of transactions with Board members and key senior 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF

The directors confirm they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts

comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction by the Welsh Ministers.

By Order of the Board

Signed:

Date: 31 May 2012 Rosemary Kennedy, Chairman

Date: 31 May 2012 Simon Dean, Chief Executive Officer

Date: 31 May 2012 Steve Ham, Director of Finance
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THE NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE IN WALES ACCOUNTS DIRECTION GIVEN BY 
WELSH MINISTERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCHEDULE 9 SECTION 178 PARA 3(1) OF 
THE NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE (WALES) ACT 2006 (C.42) AND WITH THE 
APPROVAL OF TREASURY  
  
 
NHS TRUSTS 
  
1. Welsh Ministers direct that an account shall be prepared for the financial year ended 31 
March 2010 and subsequent financial years in respect of the NHS Wales Trusts in the form 
specified in paragraphs [2] to [7] below. 
  
 
BASIS OF PREPARATION  
 
2. The account of the NHS Wales Trusts shall comply with:  
  
 (a) the accounting guidance of the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM), which 
is in force for the financial year for which the accounts are being prepared, as detailed in the 
NHS Wales Trust Manual for Accounts; 
  
 (b) any other specific guidance or disclosures required by the Welsh Government. 
 
 
FORM AND CONTENT  
  
3. The account of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2010 and subsequent years shall 
comprise a foreword, an income statement, a statement of financial position, a statement of 
cash flows and a statement of changes in taxpayers’ equity as long as these statements are 
required by the FReM and applied to the NHS Wales Manual for Accounts, including such 
notes as are necessary to ensure a proper understanding of the accounts. 
  
4. For the financial year ended 31 March 2010 and subsequent years, the account of the 
Trust shall give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year 
and the operating costs, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows during the year. 
 
5.  The account shall be signed and dated by the Chief Executive. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS  
  
6.  The direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the published accounts. 
  
7.  The notes to the accounts shall, inter alia, include details of the accounting policies 
adopted. 
   
Signed by the authority of Welsh Ministers  
 
 
  
Signed :        Chris Hurst                                              Dated :  17.06.2010 
 
1 Please see regulation 3 of the 2009 No 1558(W.153); NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE, 
WALES; The National Health Service Trusts (Transfer of Staff, Property Rights and 
Liabilities) (Wales) Order 2009 
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